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historic name: Flrst Methodist Episcopal Church, South

other name/site number: First United Methodist Church
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street & number: 503 W. Commercial St.

not for publicaticn: N/A

city/town: Qzark , vicinity: N/A
state: AR county: Franklin code: AR 047 zip code: 72949
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Ownership of Property: Private

Category of Property: Building

Number of Resources within Property:

Contributing Noncontributing

1 buildings
sites
structures

________ objects

1 0 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National
Register: N/A

Name of related multiple property listing: K/A
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As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act
of 1986, as amended, I hereby certify that this _X nomination
request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation
standards for registering properties in the National Register of
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional reguirements
set forth in 35 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property _X meets

does not meet the National Register Criteria. See continuation

Bind , 2-/6-92

certifyinggofficial Date

shea

Signature

Arkansas Historic Preservation Program
State or Federal agency and bureau

In my cpinion, the property meets does not meet the National
Register criteria. See continuation sheet.

Sigﬁature of commenting or other official ' Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

I, hereby certify that this property is:

____ entered in the National Register
_____ See continuation sheet.
~ determined eligible for the
National Register
_____ See continuation sheet.
~ determined not eligible for the
National Register
removed from the National Register

other (explain}:

Signature of Keeper Date
of Action
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Historic: Religion Sub: Religious Facility

chrrent : Religion Sub: Religious Facility
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Architectural Classification:

Late Gothic Revival

Cther Description: N/A

Materials: foundation Stcne roof Ceramic Tile
walls Stone other

Describe present and historic physical appearance. X See continuation
sheet.

Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in
relation to other properties: Local

Applicable National Register Criteria: C
Criteria Considerations (Exceptions): A

Areas of Sicnificance: Architecture

Period(s) of Significance: 1%09

Significant Dates: N/A

Significant Person(s): N/A

Cultural Affiliation: N/A

Architect/Builder: Klingensmith, A.

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria
considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.
X Bee continuation sheet.
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See continuation sheet.
Previous documentation on file {NPS):

preliminary determination of individual listing {36 CFR 67) has been
requested,

previously listed ‘in the National Register

previously determined eligible by the National Register

designated a Naticnal Historic Landmark

recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey #

recorded by Historic American Engineering Record #

Primary Location of Additional Data:

State historic preservation office
QOther state agency

Federal agency

Local government

. University

QCther -- Specify Repository:
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Acreage of Property: Less than one

UTM References: Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Nerthing

See continuation sheet.

Verbal Boundary Description: _ _ See continuation sheet.

Beginning at the socuthwest corner of the intersection of Commerce 8t. (U.S.
Route 64) and 5th St., proceed west along the southern curbline of Commerce
St. to the point formed by the intersection of said line and the line formed
by, but 5 feet away from, the western elevation of the education bldg.
addition. Then proceed south to the intersection of said line and a line
formed by, but 5 feet away from, the southern elevation ¢f the church. Then
proceed east to the western curbline of 5th St. Then proceed north ta the
point ¢of beginning.

Boundary Justification: See centinuation sheet.

h ]
This boundary reflects the close Broximity of the surrounding properties ai..
includes all of the property historically associated with this resource that
retains its integrity.
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Name/Title: Patrick Zollner, National Reqister Historian

Organization:Arkansas Historic Preservation Program Date:07/27/92

Street & Number:225 E. Markham, Suite 300 Telephone: {501) 324-9346

City or Town:_Little Rock State:AR_ ZIP: 72201
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Summary

The First Methodist Episcopal Church, South, now known as the First United
Methodist Church, in Ozark is a single-story, cut stone-constructed sanctuary
with two towers, associated anterooms, and a full basement. Erected in 1809, the
church displays the Gothic Revival style of architecture.

Elaboration

Constructed in 1909, the First Methodist Episcopal Church, South, now known as
the First United Methedist Church, in Ozark is a one-and-a-half story sanctuary
with two towers, associated anterooms, and a full basement. The cut-stone
masonry structure was designed in the Gothic Revival style of architecture and
displays such typical characteristics of the style as crenelated towers,
buttresses, pointed arch windows, and shaped parapets. The sanctuary is
covered by a clay-tile, parapeted gable roof. The full basement is partially
exposed, and there is one cut-stone chimney at the rear of the church.

Two square, crenelated towers flanking a gable end that forms the sanctuary
comprises the northern, or front, elevation. Both towers contain identical double-
leaf entrances that are located within pointed Gothic arches. Decorative tracery
adorns the arched space above the conventional doors. The eastern tower is
much taller than the southern tower and houses the belfry. The belfry area is
defined by three lancet openings on all four sides of the tower. Below the
belfry, tall, narrow rectangular fixed stained glass windows fenestrate the three
sides of the tower that are exposed at this height. The entrance is directly
below this band on the northern elevation, but the eastern elevation of the tower
is decorated further with an oculus window with a row of three =smaller
rectaengular fixed stained glass windows underneath. There are also two cne-
over-one double-hung windows that light the basement on this elevation of the
tower. They are located just above ground and below a shallow belt course.

The gable end area is also bolstered by angled buttresses at each end’s juncture
with the two towers. This elevation is dominated by a symmetrical group of
three Gothic windows, A large pointed-arch occupies the center of the group
and contains two stained-glass lancet windows with an oculus window at the apex.
Two lancet arches flank the center arch and each contains a stained-glass lancet
window that is identical in dimensions to the two within the center arch. All of
the stained-glass windows in the church are shielded by protective plexiglass.
Above this window grouping is a tall, narrow rectangular opening that serves as
a louvered attic vent. Above this vent is a somewhat unusual stone {jnial. The
two entrances on this elevation are accessed by a three-step central stoop which
divides into two perpendicular six—-step stoops that service the respective towers,
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The previously mentioned belt course should be more appropriately called a water
table at this elevation for it is loccated at the top of the two tower stoops. There
are, however, five small rectangular basement windows located below the belt
course in the space between the tower stoops.

The eastern and western elevations are basijcally identical. Both consist of three
bays separated by three perpendicular buttresses. The end buttress gives the
appearance of a continuance of the rear gable parapet. Each bay is crowned by
a shaped parapet and is fenestrated by a double lancet stained-glass window and
an oculus windew all within & single pointed arch, as found in the northern
elevation. Because of the sloping site, the eastern elevation has more exposed
wall surface with encugh space available to permit paired one-over-one double-
hung basement windows beneath the belt course. The western elevation has only
enough wall surface below the belt course for small rectangular windows;
however, these openings have now been largely utilized for modern heating and
air conditioning units.

A one-and-a-half story center bay that is covered with a clay-tile, gable-on-hip
roof forms the southern, or rear, elevation. Just above the ridge of this rocof
is an oculus window located in the rear of the main gable parapet. The center
section, which is not fenestrated, is flanked by two single-story hipped-roof bays
with each containing a one-over-onre double-hung stained-glass window on the
scuthern elevation. Both bays also feature an identical window on their
respective eastern and western elevations. The southern elevation also contains
four one-over-one basement windows. The basement can be entered from the
exterior by two single-leal entrances. One is placed in the eastern elevation of
the eastern hipped-roof bhay, and the other is located in the scuthern elevation
of the tall, eastern tower.

In 1957, an educational building was constructed and connected to the church by
an enclosed hallway that utilized an existing doorway at the southwest corner of
the church. Though attached to the church, practically all of the western
elevation in its original condition remains visible from the road.

There have been no substantial alterations to the interior. Dark-stained trusses
accentuate the vaulted ceiling. The pipe organ is located within the chancel
which is framed by a large pointed Gothic arch. The rear wall of the chancel is
filled with the organ pipes, which are in the shape of three pointed arches.
Gothic arch reliefs adorn the wall surfaces to either side of the pulpit and to
either side of the choir at the rear of the church. There is also a choir loft
supported by tweo large square columns.
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Summary

The PFirst Methedist Episcopal Church, South, now known as the First United
Methodist Church, is being nominated wunder Criterion C with local significance
as the best example of the Gothic Revival style of architecture in Ozark.

Elaboration

The First Methodist Episcopal Church, South at 503 West Commercial Stireet in
Qzark was constructed in 1909 to replace an earlier frame structure built in 1876,
the first Methedist church in Ozark. The congregation was organized in 1871 by
Reverend Hastings Puckett. This is a somewhat late date for the arrival of the
Methodist presence in Ozark since the town was first laid out in 1836 by
Archibald Yell, David Walker, and William Haile. As the cldest town in Franklin
County, Ozark was made the county seat when the county was created in 1837.
The town's growth was interrupted by the Civil War when the town was almost
entirely burned. After the war the town resumed normal growth. By 1909 when
the new church was built, Ozark had become the center of several coal mining
operations in addition to the conventional mercantile businesses.

In 1909, a building committee of nine chaired by Marion B, Conatser selected the
architect, A. Xlingensmith, to design the new church. The contract price of
$13,000, which included material and labor, was awarded to Claude Talley. A
ground-breaking ceremony was held on June 7, 1809 by the building committee,
church teachers, and class members. By Dedication Weelk, November 4-10, 1812,
a total of $10,245 had been contributed by fifty-two members of the congregation.
At this time a pipe organ, which was manufactured by George Kilgen and Son of
St. Louils, was presented as a gift to the church from the Young Ladies’
Auxiliary. This organ is still in use today.

The First Methodist Episcopal Church, South, now known as the First United
Methodist Church, serves as an important link to an architectural style that was
first popularized in the United States in the 1840’s. Resplendent in its medieval
towers, parapets, and decorative detail, this church is important for its attempt
at correct Gothic detail at a relatively late date in the American duration of the
style. After 1900, churches constructed in the Gothic Revival style generally
became less detail oriented, and soen the style was supplanted entirely by the
derivative Collegiate Gothic style, The First Methodist Episcopal Church, South
is an cutstanding representative of the Gothic Revival style of architecture and
the best example in the town of Ozark. For these reasons, this church is being

nominated under Criterion C with local significance.

- v
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